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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Members ofFlysbs Aviation Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of Flysbs Aviation Limited (Company), which comprise 
the balance sheet as at 31st March 2025, and the statement of Profit and Loss for the year then 
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 in 
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and its 
financial performance for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are 
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements 
that are relevant to our audit of the financial.statements under the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon 

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. 
The other information comprises the information included in the Company's annual report, but 
does not include the financial statements and our auditors' report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears i:o be 
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtaine~ Mo Ri 
prior to the date of this auditor's report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement oft . o S cf 
other information, we are required to report that fact We have nothing to report in this regar . ~ 
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial 
Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that 
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance of the Company in 
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting 
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act This responsibility also includes maintenance 
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of 
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the 
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors 
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but 
to do so. 

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting 
process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor's report that includes our opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted 
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they 
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. • .) cf 
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b) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. But not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal controls. 

c) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management 

d) Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's 
report However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue 
as a going concern. 

e) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguards. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the 
Central Government of India in terms of subsection (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give 
in the Annexure A a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the 
Order, to the extent applicable. 

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of 
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt 
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014. 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st Ma 
2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified a 
31st March, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the 
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f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to 
standalone financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure B". 

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance 
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to 
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The Company does not have any Pending Litigations. 

ii. The Company does not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Company. 

iv. In our opinion, we report that, 
a. The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, 

other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced 
or loaned or invested ( either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other 
sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or 
entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, 
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or 
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

b. The management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, 
other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received 
by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest 
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf 
of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security 
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 

c. Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and appropriate in 
the circumstances, nothing has come to their notice that has caused them to 
believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material 
mis-statement. 

v. The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year in contravention of 
the provisions of section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

vi. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of 
account using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail ( edit log) 
facility is applicable to the company with effect from April 1, 2023. Based on our 
examination, which included test checks, the company has used accounting software for 
maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended 31 March, 2025 which has a 
feature of recording audit trail (Edit log) facility and the same has been operated 
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, dw·jng ~ , MO R!s 
the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature bei g,p cf 
tampered with. ""' 
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h) The Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the 
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to 
the Act. 

Place: Chennai 

Date: 15-07-2025 

For A. John Moris & Co., 
Chartered Accountants 
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ANNEXURE "A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR TO THE MEMBERS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE COMPANIES 
(AUDITORS' REPORT] ORDER 2020 

On the basis of the information and explanation given to us during the course of our audit, we 
report that: 

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, 
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment 

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of 
Intangible Assets. 

(b) Pursuant to the company's programme of verifying fixed assets in a phased manner, 
physical verification of fixed assets was conducted during the year. According to the 
information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed 
on such verification. 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us the company does not 
have any immovable properties, therefore there are no title deeds of immovable 
properties being held in the name of the company. 

( d) The company has not revalued its Property, Plant, and Equipment during the year. 
Therefore, the provisions of this clause is not applicable to the company. 

( e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding 
any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 ( 45 of 
1988) and rules made thereunder. 

(ii) ( a) In our opinion, physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable 
intervals by the management and the coverage and procedure of such verification 
by the management are appropriate. No material discrepancies were noticed on 
such verification. 

(b) During the year, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess 
of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets. 
The Company has filed quarterly returns or statements with such banks, which are 
in agreement with the books of accounts. 

(iii) In our opinion and based on the information and explanation given to us the company has 
not granted any loan, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability 
Partnerships, or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the 
Companies Act 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of this clause of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company. 

#,. 
(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of ou ':,() 

examination of the records, the company has not given any loans or provided any guarant e "q" .. 
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or security as specified under Section 185 of The Companies Act, 2013 and the, company 
has not provided any guarantee or security as specified under Section 186 of The 
Companies Act, 2013. 

(v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted 
deposits from the public in terms of provisions of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the rules made thereunder to the extent notified. 

(vi) The Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost records under Section 
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the products/services of the Company. 

(vii) (a) 

(b) 

Based on the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, undisputed statutory dues including 
Provident Fund, Income-tax, Goods and Services Tax, Customs Duty, Cess and any 
other statutory dues applicable to it, have generally been regularly deposited by the 
Company with the appropriate authorities. 

As of the year-end, according to the records of the Company and information and 
explanations given to us, there are no disputed statutory dues outstanding on the 
company. 

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no 
transaction recorded in the books of account that has been surrendered or disclosed as 
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 ( 43 of 1961) 

(ix) (a) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and 
explanations given to us, company has not defaulted in repayment ofloans or other 
borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year; 

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
company has not been a declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial 
institution or other lender. 

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained. 

( d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there 
are no funds raised on short-term basis which have been utilised for long-term 
purposes. 

(e) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Hence, reporting 
under this clause is not required to be made. 

(f) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Hence, reporting 
under this clause is not required to be made. 

(x) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, on an overall basis, the _ 
company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further pub • ~\OR1s 
offer (including debt instruments) ,p 
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(b) 

(xi) (a) 

The Company has made preferential allotment, private placement of shares during 
the year and the requirements of Section 42 and Section 62 of the Companies Act, 
2013 have been complied with and the funds raised have been used for the 
purposes for which the funds were raised. 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 
representation of the management which we have relied upon, no fraud by the 
Company or on the company by its officers or employees has been noticed or 
reported during the year. 

(b) During the year no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies 
Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government 

(c) There were no whistle-blower complaints of the company during the year. 

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 
Therefore, the requirement to report under this clause of the order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions with the related 
parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of The Companies Act, 2013 as 
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by 
the applicable accounting standards. 

(xiv) (a) 

(b) 

The company does not have an internal audit system commensurate with the size 
and nature of its business. 

The company is not mandatorily required to appoint Internal Auditor under Section 
138 of the Companies Act, 2013 read alongwith the rules prescribed thereunder, 
hence this paragraph of the order is not applicable. 

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us based on our examination of 
the record of the company, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions 
with directors or persons connected with him as mentioned in Section 192 of the Act 
Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xv) of the order are not applicable. 

(xvi) (a) 

(b) 

(c) 

(d) 

The company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve 
Bank oflndia Act, 1934. Accordingly, the reporting under this clause of the Order is 
not applicable to the Company. 

The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance 
activities during the year. 

The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations 
made by the Reserve Bank of India. 

As per the information and explanations received, the group does not have any Core 
Investment Company as part of the group. 

(xvii) The company has not incurred cash loss in current financial year as well in immediate"'4y o'<';\~\ ORfs cf 
preceding financial year. :' C'O 
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(xviii) There has been resignation of the previous statutory auditors of the Company during the 
year and there were no issues, objections or concerns raised by the outgoing auditors. 

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, aging and expected dates of realization of financial 
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial 
statements, the auditor's Im owl edge of the Board of Directors and management plans, we 
are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report 
that company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as 
and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. 

(xx) (a) In respect of other than ongoing projects with regard to second proviso to sub­
section (5) of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the company is yet to 
transfer the unspent amount to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies 
Act, 2013 due to the reason that the period of six months from the expiry of the 
financial year is still available. 

(b) There is no amount remaining unspent under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the 
Companies Act, pursuant to any ongoing project and hence reporting under this 
clause is not applicable. 

Place: Chennai 

Date: 15-07-2025 

For A. John Moris & Co., 
Chartered Accountan ,, ., l , 
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Annexure "B" to the Independent Auditor's Report 

Referred to in paragraph 2 ( e) under 'Report on other legal and regulatory requirements' section 
of our report to the Members ofFlysbs Aviation Limited. 

Report on the internal financial controls over financial reporting under clause (i) of sub -
section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2 013 ("the Act") 

Opinion 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Flysbs Aviation 
Limited ("the Company") as at March 31, 2025, in conjunction with our audit of the financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has, 
in all material respects, an adequate internal financial control system over financial reporting and 
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 
2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. 

Management's responsibility for internal financial controls 

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by 
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the 
timely preparation ofreliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance 
Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the standards on auditing 
prescribed under Section 143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit 
of internal financial controls. Those standards and the guidance note require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting were established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. • 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of th 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Ou 
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanclin 
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of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based 
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement in the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial control system over financial 
reporting. 

Meaning of internal financial controls over financial reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and-dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) 
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations 
of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's 
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management of override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject 
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures 
may deteriorate. 

For A. John Moris & Co., 
Chartered Acco4-D.tants 
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FLYSBSAVIATION LIMITED 

(Formerly Known as FLYSBS AVIATION PRIVATE LIMITED) 

Plot No 16(NP), 3rd Floor, Indiqube Palmyra, SIDCO Industrial Estate, Ekkatuthangal, Guindy Industrial Estate, Chennai-600032,Tamilnadu 

CIN : U62200TN2020PLC136959 

BALANCE SHEET AS ON MARCH 31, 2025 
(Amount in l' Lakhs) 

Asat 
Particulars Note 1----------,,------------1 

Mar 31, 2025 Mar 31, 2024 

I. EQlilTY AND LIABILITIES 
Shareholders' Funds 

(a) Share Capital 
( b) Reserves and Surplus 
( c) Money received against share warrants 

2 Share Application money Pending Allotment 

3 Non-Current Liabilities 
(a) Long-Terrn Borrowings 
(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 
(c) Other Long Terrn Liabilities 
(d) Long-Terrn Provisions 

4 Current Liabilities 
(a) Short-Terrn Borrowings 
(b) Trade Payables 

(A) Total Outstanding Dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 

(B) Total Outstanding Dues of Creditors Other than Micro Enterprises 
and Small Enterprises 

(c) Other Current Liabilities 
( d) Short-Terrn Provisions 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

II. ASSETS 
l Non-Current Assets 

(a) Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets 
(i) Property, Plant & Equipment 

(ii) Intangible Assets 
(iii) Capital work-in-progress 
(iv) Intangible Assets under Development 

(b) Non-Current Investments 
( c) Long-terrn loans and advances 

(d) Other Non-Current Assets 

2 Current Assets 
(a) Current Investments 
(b) Inventories 
(cl Trade Receivables 
(d) Cash & Cash Equivalents 

(e) Short terrn loans and advances 
(f) Other Current Assets 

TOT AL ASSETS 

As per our report of even date attached 

2 

3 
4 

5 

6 

7 

8 
9 

10 

\I 
\2 

13 
14 
\5 
16 
17 

1,274 68 
13,762 99 

15,037.67 

766 49 
171 52 

11 07 
949.08 

1,026 18 

4 79 

404 77 

746 28 
1,014 82 

3.196.84 
19,183.58 

542 53 

0 70 

4,594.78 
2, \53 00 
7,291.01 

890 93 
2,087 39 
4,982 50 
2,529 57 
1,402 I 8 

I 1.892.58 
19.183.58 

321 02 
6,278 10 

6,599.12 

57 11 
127 13 

184.24 

198 47 

0.80 

54 83 

396 40 
229 70 

880.19 
7.663.55 

521 96 

\ ,994 48 
1,914 81 

4,431.25 

671 48 
659 9\ 
833 42 

\,047 09 
20 40 

3.232.30 
7,663.55 

For A. John Moris & Co 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Reg No: 007220S 
Peer Review Certificate No 014619 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

FLYSBS AVIATION Ll"IITED 

/ ""'"""Fl SAVIATION PRVATEL~ 

Deepak Parasurnman Krnma Amba Shankar 

Partner 
M,No: 211698 

ilPIN'- ,_5,..116cnr&rv1-m0011.F1s 

Date: 15-07-2025 
Place: CHENNAI 

Managing Director 
DI',' : 00699855 

N , 
a nnon S:ip rlmrish~ 

Com1 ,lily Secretary cum 
Compliance Officer 
M.No.: ACS 11865 

DIN: 085 

•. ilDJ 

Chief Financi 



FLYSBS AVIATION LIMITED 

(Formerly Known as FLYSBS AVIATION PRIVATE LIMITED) 

Plot No I 6(NP), 3rd Floor, lndiqube Palmyra, SIDCO Industrial Estate, Ekkatuthangal, Guindy Industrial Estate, Chennai-600032,Tamilnadu 

CIN: U62200TN2020PLC136959 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 

Particulars 

I. Income 
Revenue From Operations 

Other Income 

Total Revenue 

II Expenditure 

Direct Operating Expenses 

Employee Benefits Expenses 

Finance Costs 

Depreciation & Amortisation Expenses 

Other Expenses 

Total Expenditure 

III Profit for the period before adjustments 

Adjustments for prior period items 

Annx 
No. 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

For the Year Eod_ed Mar 
31,2025 

19,389.56 

148.82 

19,538.38 

14,489.31 

451.40 

209.87 

31.57 

456.44 

15,638.60 

3,899.78 

(Amount in ~ Lakhs) 

For the Year Ended Mar 31, 
2024 

10,648.69 

14.42 

10,663.11 

8,929.75 

88.05 

79.95 

26.01 

145.74 

9,269.51 

1,393.61 

IV Profit Before Exceptional and Extraordinary Items and Tax (I-II) 3,899.78 1,393.61 

V Exceptional and Extraordinary Items 

VI Profit/(Loss) Before Tax (III-IV) 

VII Tax Expense: 

(a) Current Tax 

(b) Deferred Tax 

VIII Profit/(Loss) for the Year (V-VI) 

IX Earnings per Equity Share of Rs.10 Each* 

- Basic 

- Diluted 

Weighted Average No. of Shares ( in Lakhs ) 

As per our report of even date attached 

For A. John Moris & Co 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Reg' • 
Peer Review 

S Muralikannan 
Partner 
M.No: 211698 
VblN: '-~l-l)&'tle,M JP 6' l)Jl.'f~ 

Date: 15-07-2025 
Place: CH ENNAI 

3,899.78 

1,014.79 

44.38 

2,840.61 

25 

24.65 

24.65 

115.23 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
FLYSBS AVIATION LIMITED 

(Formerly Known as FLYSBS AVIATION PRIVATE LIMITED 

l ~ 
K~n R~makrishnan 

1,393.61 

153 .57 

126.94 

I, 113.10 

10.72 

10.72 

103.81 

Director Wholetime Director & CEO 

N . -::?~L 
Nt~anan Sap1ha;;,i 

Company Secretary cum 
Compliance Officer 
M.No.: ACS 11865 

DIN : 08202306 

~~ ~ 
Chief Financial Of 



FLYSBS AVIATION LIMITED 

(Formerly Known as FLYSBS AVIATION PRIVATE LIMITED) 

Plot No 16(NP), 3rd Floor, lndiqube Palmyra, SIDCO Industrial Estate, Ekkatuthangal, Guindy lndustrial Estate, Chennai-
600032,Tamilnadu 

CIN : U62200TN2020PLC136959 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 

Pa rticu la rs 

A CASH FLOWS FROM OPERA TING ACTIVITIES: 

Net Profit Before Tax 

Adjustments for: 

Depreciation 

Prior Period Items 

Provision for Gratuity 

Disposal of Asset 

Interest Expenses 

Unrealised Foreign Exchange Loss/(Gain) 

Interest Income 

Operating Profit before working capital changes: 

Adjustments for Changes in Working Capital: 

(lncrease)/Decrease in Trade Receivables 

( lncrease)/Decrease in Inventories 

(lncrease)/Decrease in Short term loans and Advances 

( Increase )/Decrease in Other Current Assets 

lncrease/( Decrease) in Trade and Other Payables 

Increase/( Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities 

Cash Generated from Operations 

Income Taxes Paid 

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTMTES (A) 

B CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Interest Received 

(lncrease)/Decrease in Long term loans and Advances 

(lncrease)/Decrease in Other Non-Current Assets 

(Purchase)ISale of Property, Plant and Equipment 

NET CASO USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B) 

C CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITES 

D 

Interest paid 

Proceeds from Issuance of Share capital 

Proceeds from Long-Term Borrowings 

Repayment of Long-Term Borrowings 

Proceeds from Short-Term Borrowings 

Repayment of Short-Term Borrowings 

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C) 

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT (A+B-+C) 

Opening Cash and Cash Equivalents 

CLOSlNG CASH AND CASH EQUIV AU:NT 

Cash & Cash Equivalent as per Balance sheet 

Cash & Cash Equivalent at the End of the Period 

As per our report of even date attached 

For the Year Ended Mar 
31, 2025 

3,899 78 

31 57 

53 49 
407 

I 97 

209 87 

3.85 

(85 .13) 

4,119.47 

(1,427 48) 

(219.45) 

(1,482.48) 

(1,398.67) 

353 93 

364 89 

310.20 

(255.57) 

54.63 

85 13 

(2,604 14) 

(238 19) 

(56 46) 

(2,813.67) 

(184 ,00) 

5,555 04 

797.51 

(88 13) 

18,230 31 

( 17,402.60) 

6,908.12 

4,149.09 

833.42 

4,982.50 

4,982.50 

4,982.50 

(Amou111 it, 7 Lakhs) 

For the Year 
Ended Mar 31, 2024 

1,393.61 

26 01 

79.95 

0 37 

1,499.93 

(62 19) 

(671,48) 

(1 ,047.09) 

167.86 

37.57 

225.31 

149.91 

(24 11) 

125-79 

(0.37) 

(1,315 89) 

(1,875 81 ) 

(540.45) 

(3,732.Sl) 

(79 95) 

4,346 ,77 

188,89 

(15866) 

791.46 

(901.85) 

4,186.66 

579.95 

253.47 

833.42 

833.42 

833.42 

For A. John Moris & Co For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
FLYSBS AVIATION LIMITED 

S Murn 
Partner 
M No: 211698 

1/r,tN: Z.S'".).llo'tS Bf't]I.P l.'1D 
f~ClfS 

Date: 15-07-2025 

Plac~: CHEN Al 

'~ 
Director 

DIN : 08202306 

N ,-:;$},~·~ 
Nai\(vannn Saptharishi 

Company Secretary cum 
Compliance Officer 

M.No.: ACS 11865 

w 

. an · 

Chief Financial Officer 
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FLYSBS AVIATION LIMITED 
(Formerly Known as FLYSBS AVIATION PRIVATE LIMITED) 

Plot No 16(NP), 3rd Floor, lndiqube Palmyra, SIDCO Industrial Estate, Ekkatuthangal, Guindy Industrial Estate, Chennai-600032,Tamilnadu 

CIN : U62200TN2020PLC136959 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY AND NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

A. BACKGROUND 

FL YSBS AVIATION PRIVATE LIMITED having CIN: U62200TN2020PTC136959 was incorporated on August 7th, 2020 under the provisions of 
the Companies Act 2013, and was having its registered office at Flat No. 101, Comer Stone Apartments, New No.60, MMTC Colony Main Road, 
Nanganallur, Chennai - 600061 , Tamilnadu, India and shifted its registered office on 21/10/2024 with a new registered office is at Plot no. 16 (NP), 3rd 
Floor, Indiqube Palmyra, SfDCO lndusrial Estate, Ekkatuthangal, Guindy Industrial Estate, Chennai - 600032, Tamilnadu, India. Subsequently, the 
Company was converted from Private Limited Company into Public Limited Company vide special resolution passed by its shareholders at the Extra 
Ordinary General Meeting held on 31 /08/2024 and the name of the Company was converted to FLYSBS AVIATION LIMITED ('the Company " or the 
··Jssuer") pursuant to issuance of Fresh Certificate of Incorporation dated 29th October 2024 under Companies Act 2013 by Registrar of Companies, 
Chennai with Corporate Identification Number C62200TN2020PLCl36959. 

The Main Oject of the Company is: 

I) To establish, organize, manage, run, charter, conduct, contract, develop, handle, own and operate all types of aircrafts, air buses, aeroplanes, 
seaplanes, flying boats, hover crafts, helicopters, and other crafts used in air transport for the carriage of passengers, goods, mails and other 
items on all routes and lines on national and international level, subject to the laws in force through all sorts of carriers and so on whether 
propelled or any other fonn of Power 

2) To Act as booking agents, indenting agents, travel agents, fleet owners, garage owners, service station owners, cargo superintendents, cargo 
owners, loanding and unloading contractors, couriers, laison, charters, operators and to do all acts, things necessary for the attainment of the 
above objects 

3) To assist, design, manufacture, purchase, sell, supply, repair, import, export, fabricate, erect, commission, representative of environmental 
protection equipment relating to Air Craft, maintenance, services to Industries, business houses of various made available in India and abroad 

B. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Basis of Preparation: 

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (IGAAP) under historical cost 
convention on the accrual basis GAAP comprises mandatory accounting standards prescribed by the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021 . 

2 Use of Estimates: 

The preparation of the financial statements in confonnity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles requires the Management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities and disclosures relating to contingent assets and liabilities as at the date of the 
financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expenses during the year Examples of such estimates include provisions for doubtful debts, 
income taxes, post - sales customer support and the useful lives of Property Plant and Equipments and intangible assets. 

3 Current and non-current classification: 
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/ non-current classification 
An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 
• lt is expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in nonnal operating cycle 
• lt is held primarily for the purpose of trading 
• It is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
• Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period 
Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. 
All other assets are classified as non-current. 
A liability is current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 
• It is expected to be settled in nom1al operating cycle 
• It is held primarily for the purpose of trading 
• It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
• There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period 
Current liabilities includes the current portion of long term financial liabilities. The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. Deferred tax 
assets and liabilities 
are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in 
cash and cash 
equivalents, The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle. 



4 Property, Plant and Equipment including Intangible Assets: 
Property, Plant and Equipments are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Cost includes cost of acquisition including material cost, freight, 
installation cost, duties and taxes, and other incidental expenses, incurred up to the installation stage, related to such acquisition. Property, Plant and 
Equipments purchased in India in foreign currency are recorded in Rupees, converted at the exchange rate prevailed on the date of purchase. Intangible 
assets that are acquired by the Company are measured initially at cost. After initial recognition, an intangible asset is carried at its cost less any 
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment loss. Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits 
to the specific assets to which it relates. Intangible assets are amortized in Statement of Profit and Loss over their estimated useful lives, from the date that 
they are available for use based on the expected pattern of consumption of economic benefits of the assets. Intangible Asset comprising of Air Operator 
Permit, have been dercognized during the year as they do not fulfill the requirements of AS 26. The same has been presented in Other non-current assets as 
EIS Costs since it comprises of nature of deferred revenue expenditure. 

S Depreciation & Amortisation: 

The Company has applied the estimated useful lives as specified in Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013 and calculated the depreciation as per the 
Straight Line Method. Depreciation on new assets acquired during the year is provided at the rates applicable from the date of acquisition to the end of the 
financial year, In respect of the assets sold during the year, depreciation is provided from the beginning of the year till the date of its disposal. Intangible 
assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life as specified in Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013. The amortisation expense 
on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. In respect of the assets sold during the year, amortisation is provided 
from the beginning of the year till the date of its disposal. Depreciation expenses has been restated using SLM Method at the useful life as specified in 
Schedule-II of Companies Act, 2013. As in the reporting period of restated financials. 

The estimated useful lives of assets are as follows: 
Useful life of Property, Plant and Equipments 

Category Schedule - II Part •c ' Useful life 

Vehicles VI (3) 8 Years 

Aircrafts or Helicopters VIII 20 Years 

Office Equipment XI 5 Years 

Computers & laptops XII (ii) 3 Years 

Furniture & Fittings V(i) 10 Years 

6 Capital work-in-progress: 
Capital Work-in-Progress represents costs incurred on assets under construction or development, which are not yet ready for intended use. It includes direct 
costs, attributable indirect costs, and eligible borrowing costs. CWIP is carried at cost and transferred to fixed assets upon completion. It is periodically 
reviewed for impairment, and any loss is recognized in the profit and loss statement. 

7 Investments: 

Investments, which are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than one year from the date on which such investments are made, are 
classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as long-term investments. Current investments are stated at lower of cost and fair 
value. Long-term investments are stated at cost. A provision for diminution is made to recognise a decline, other than temporary, in the value of long-term 
investments. 

8 Entry-Into-Service (EIS) Costs: 

The company has planned to diversify its mode of operation from 'wet lease arrangement' where the aircrafts are hired as a package inclusive of fuel, crude, 
pilot, etc. to 'dry lease arrangement' where the company hires only the aircraft with all other necessary requirements to operate the aircraft and do the service to 
be taken care by the company itself from hiring pilot, crew members, fuel , maintenance, etc. to leverage from the limitations of wet lease mode of operation. 

EIS Cost comprises of Aircraft lease rent, Aircraft charter charges, Pilot salary, etc. which are incurred before beginning the operations of the aircraft. 

The company brought the aircraft on dry lease basis and spent various expenses that are essential for the company to perform its business operations. These 
expenses spent, have been grouped under Entry Into Service (EIS) Costs which pertains to be in nature of Deferred Revenue Expenditure for a period of 8 years 
and during each year_ the expenses are charged under the head 'Direct Operating Expense' in the Statement of Profit and Loss on straight line basis 

9 Inventories: 
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost or net realisable value Cost of inventories comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs 
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. In detennining the cost, FIFO method is used. Net realisable value is the estimated 
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The comparison of 
cost and net realisable value is made on an item-by-item basis. 

IO Cash and Cash Equivalents: 
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and cash deposits with banks. The Company considers all highly liquid investments with a original maturity at a 
date of purchase of three months or }ess and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash to be cash equivalents. 

, 

I I Cash Flow Statement: 
Cash flows are reported using indiret ) 1 oss before tax is adjusted for the effects of Iran • 
deferrals or accruals of past or futu I yments and item of income or expenses associ 
flows. The cash flows from operm.in lleli',S-tP'!f lties of the Company are segregated. 



12 Revenue Recognition: 
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company and the revenue can be reliably measured in 
accordance with AS-9, Revenue Recognition. Revenue from Chartereing Services are recognized on accrual basis, as per terms of agreement entered into 
with customers. 

The following other revenues are recognized and accounted on their accrual with necessary provisions for all known liabilities and losses as per AS 9: 

Interest Income: Revenue is recognized on the time proportion basis after taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable. 

Dividend Income: Dividend Income is recognised when the owners right to receive payment is established. 

Other Income: Other items of income and expenditure are recognized on accrual basis and as a going concern basis, and the accounting policies are 
consistent with the generally accepted accounting policies. 

13 Foreign Currency Transactions: 
Domestic Operation: 
I . Initial Recognition : 
A foreign currency transaction is accounted in accordance with AS-I I "The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates", on initial recognition in the 
reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the 
transaction. 

II. Measurement: 
Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate. 

Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the 
transaction. 

Non-monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates that 
existed when the values were determined. 

III. Treatment of Foreign Exchange : 
Exchange differences arising on settlement/restatement of foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities of the Company are recognised as income or 
expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

14 Employee Benefits: 

Post-Employment Benefits: 
Defined Benefit Plan: 
Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is unfunded. The Company accounts for liability for future gratuity benefits based on the actuarial 
valuation using Projected Unit Credit Method carried out as at the end of each financial year. 

Defined Contribution Plan: 
Provident Fund: Eligible employees receive benefit from provident fund covered under the Provident Fund Act. Both the employee and the company make 
monthly contributions. The employer contribution is charged off to Profit & Loss Account as an expense. 

Short-term Employee Benefits: 
Short-Term Employee Benefits are recognized as an expense in the period in which the related service is rendered. These include salaries, wages, bonuses, 
leave encashment, and other benefits payable within twelve months. 

15 Leases: 

Leased assets under which the Company assumes substantially all risks and benefits of ownership are classified as finance 
lease. Other leases are classified as operating leases, 
Finance lease: Assets taken on finance lease are capitalized at the lower of the fair value of the assets and the present value 
of the minimum lease rentals (which includes initial a.mount paid by the Company to the lessors) with the corresponding amount payable by the Company 
shown as lease liability The principal component of the lease rentals is adjusted against 
the lease liability and interest component is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
There are no Finance Lease transactions entered into by the company during the reporting period 
Operating lease: Lease rentals in respect of assets taken on operating lease are charged to the Statement of Profit and 
Loss with reference to the lease term and other considerations. 
AJI the lease rentals of aircrafts that are entered into by the company with the Lessors are under the nature of operating lease 

16 Borrowing Costs: 
Borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition or construction ofa qualifying asset are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. A qualifying asset is one that 
necessarily takes substantial period of time lo get ready for intended use. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are 
incurred. 

17 Pre-operative expenses: 
Pre-operativexpenses were incurred before commencement of aircraft operations, hence the same will be amortized over a period of 5 years under straight line 
basis. 

18 Taxes on Income: 
Income Tax expense is accounted in accordance with AS-22 "Accounting for Taxes on Income" for both Current Tax and Deferred Tax stated below: 

1/" ' -
A. Current Tax: :-,: 

I" 

Provision for current tax is made in m:cord h Income Tax Act, 1961 . 



B. Deferred Tax: 
The differences that result between the profit / (loss) considered for income taxes and the profit/ (loss) as per the financial statements are identified and 
thereafter a deferred tax asset or deferred tax liability is recorded for timing differences, namely the differences that originate in one accounting period and 
reverse in another, based on the tax effect of the aggregate amount being considered. The tax effect is calculated on the accumulated timing differences at 
the end of an accounting period based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the Balance Sheet date. 

Where there are unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward losses, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent there is virtual certainty of realisation 
of such assets. In other situations, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent there is reasonable certainty of realisation in future. Such assets are 
reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and written down or written up to reflect the amount that is reasonably/virtually certain (as the case may be) to be 
realised. 

19 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities: 
A provision is recognised if, as a result of past event, the Company has a present legal obligation that can be estimated reliably and it is probable that an 
outflow of economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by the best estimate of outflow of economic benefits 
required to settle the obligation at the reporting date. Where no reliable estimate can be made, a disclosure is made as contingent liability. A disclosure for a 
contingent liability is also made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. 
Where there is possible obligation or present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is 
made. 

20 Earnings Per Share: 
Basic Earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. 
Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of shares considered for deriving basic earnings 
per share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The 
diluted potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair value which is the average market value of 
the outstanding shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as at the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive 
potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented. 



FLYSBS AVIATION LIMITED 

(Formerly Known as FLYSBS AVIATION PRIVATE LIMITED) 

Plot No 16(NP), 3rd Floor, lndiqube Palmyra, SIDCO Industrial Estate, Ekkatuthangal, Guindy Industrial Estate, Chennai-600032,Tamilnadu 

CIN: U62200TN2020PLC136959 

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS ON MARCH 31, 2025 

NOTE-I : SHARE CAPITAL 

t\uJhori~·e1l Shore Cll pirnl 

2,50,00,000 Equity Shares or Rs I 0/- each 

l« ued. Subsonbod & Paid L'p 

Particulan 

1,27,46,751 Equity Shares oFRs 10/- each fully paid 

Total 

Reconciliation of the shares oulstandin2. at the be2innin2 and at the end of the reportin2 neriod 

Particulars 

Authorised ~hnrc C:ip ilnl 

Authorised Share Capital (No of shares) at the beginning of the period 

Increase/ (Decrease) during the period 

Authorised Share Capital (No of shares) at the end of the period 

lr!l ucd, SuhM:rihrd & Fulty Puhl Lin 
At the beginning of the Period 

Shares Issued for consideration during the year 

Shares issued through bonus during the year 

Total Oulstanding at the end or the year 

Tenm~/Righb attached to the Equity Shares 

As at March 31. 2025 

2,500 00 

1,274 68 

1,274.68 

As ol March 31, 2025 

No or Shares Amount 

50,00,000 500 00 

2,00,00,000 2,000 00 

2,50,00,000 2,500 00 

32,10,218 321 02 

17,57,861 175 79 

77, 78,672 777 87 

1,27,41i,751 1,274.61 

(Amount in l lakl,s) 

As•• March l1. 20l4 

500 00 

321 02 

321.02 

(Amount in l lakhs) 

As at March 31, 2024 

No of Shares Amount 

23,00,000 230 00 

27,00,000 270 00 

50,00,000 500 00 

21,50,000 215 00 

10,60,218 106 02 

-
32,11),218 321.02 

The company has only one class of equity share having par value of Rs I 0/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. 

Thi: Company has declared bonus Shares at the Members Meeting held on 20/11/2024, al the raLio of2 Equity shares of Rs 10/-Each for every I Equity shares of Rs 10/- cJCh 

hchJ. result ing in Ihe issuance of bonus shares in the proponion of 2 I i e 2 (two) new equi1y shares of Rs 10 each for every I (one) existing equity share of Rs IQ/. each fully 

11mid up held by the shareholders, by capitalization ora sum or Rs 7,77,86,720/- (Rupee Seven Crores Seventy Seven Lakhs Eighty Six Thousand Seven Hundred and 1'w,:nt)' 

onl)·) from the Reserves and Surplus based on the Nine months audited Financial Statements of the Financial Year 2024-25 

R1ghl5", preferences and res trictions attached to equity shares: 

Th Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of't 10/- per share Each holder of equity shares is enLitled to one vote per share The dividend, if any, 

pro11oscd by the Board of Direccors is subject to the approval of the shareholders at the ensuing annual general meetiny In the event of liquidation of 1he Company, the holdor.s 
or equity shares will be entilied to receive remainin¥ assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amount s in the proportion of equity shares held 

DETAILS OF SH,\R~HOLDEIIS llOtDINC: ~1ORE T IU ,~ 5% OF SUA RES; (r lmmmr in ( l .uJ.•I,.,') 

As at Marti, 31, 1025 A> 11 l\fartb 31,l0Z.C 

NAME OF SHAREHOLDERS 

Equity shares or Rs. 10 .. ch runy paid-up 

(a) Dcepak Parasuraman 

(b) Mis Shreshtha Business Solutions LlP 

(c) Annamalai T 

(e) Balasubramanian 

(f) Kishan Raj Jain B 

Total 

Notes: 

No.· ofthares 
Bold 

19,71 ,996 

24,84,204 

7,08,570 

I 1,22,003 

62,86,773 

I There were no class of shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract( s) wilhour payment being received in cash 

2 There are no calls unpaid by the Directors or officers of the company 

3 The Company has not issued shares for consideration other than cash or bought back shares 

DETAILS Of SHAREHOLDING OF PROMOTER/ PROMOTER GROUP: 
As at M•rdl 3.1, l 025 

%Boldiac 
No.or 

r£oldlnc 
shares Bold 

1547% 6,57,332 2048% 

1949% 7, 78,068 2424% 

000% 4,00,000 1246% 

S 56% 1,67,890 S 23% 

8 80% . -
49.32% 2-0,03,290 ,2.40% 

(Amount in ( lak/u,) 
As al Man:h 3J, 1014 

NAME OF PROMOTER/ PROMOTER GROUl' No. of shares 
Held 

No. of shares ·% orChange 
'¼ Holding Held '¼ Holding duing the Year 

Equity shares or Rs. 10 each fully 

(a) Deepak Parasuraman 

(b) Ws Shreshtha Business Solutions LLP 

(c) Annamalai T 

(c) Amba Sankar 

(d) Kannan Ramakrishnan 

(e) Kishan Raj Jain B 

19,71,996 

24,84,204 

42,999 

1,97,796 

11,22,003 

IS 47% 

1949% 

000% 

034% 

1 55% 

8 80% 

6,57,332 

7,78,068 

4,00,000 

14,333 

65,932 

2048% 

14 24% 

1246% 

045% 

2 05% 

000% 

(5 01%) 

(4 75%) 

(1246%) 

(011%) 

(0 50%) 

8 80% 



'1:0 1 E-2: RESER VES AN D SllRPLCS (~tmoum In I [..{IA/,~) 

Particulan As at March 31 , 2025 As at Man:h 31, 2024 

(a) Secu.-ity Premium 

Opening Balance 4,600 75 360 00 

Add: Additions during the Year 5,379 25 4,240 75 

Closing Balance 9,980.00 4,600.75 

(b) Surplus 

Opening Balance 1,677 35 564 25 

Add : Prior Period Adjust ments 42 89 -
Add. Additions during lhe Year 2,840 62 1,1 13 10 

Less Bonus Shares [ssued (777 87) -
Closing Balance 3,782.99 1,677.35 

Total 13,762.99 6,278.10 

'IOTE-3 : LOJ'<G-TE.RM BORROWINGS (Amount in r Lllk/rs) 

Pnrt.it ntru:s As al Man:h 31, 2025 As al March 31, 2024 

Secured 

Te.-m Loans: 

i From Banks 38 99 I 75 

ii From Others 717 02 

Unsecured 

Tenn Loans: 

i From Banks 7 30 55 37 

ii. From Others 3 17 -
TOTAL 766,49 57.11 

Oeiails of Secured l..oaos as on 31 st March 2025 

Terms of NoofO/S 
Closing 

Particulars Repayment (in Date or Loon 
Rate or 

Inltalmenu 
Instalment Starting Balanceuat 

lnterat (p.L) Amount Date Decembft" 31, 
months) (in monlhl) 

2024 
Yes Bank • Car Loan 60 23- 11-2020 13 75% 0 0 23 15-12-2020 
ICICI Bank Limited - Car Loan 60 30-09-2024 9 35% 55 0 77 10-11-2024 34 15 
ICICI Bank Limited - Car Loan 60 03-1 2-2024 9 30% 57 0 29 10-0 1-2025 13 47 

Cholamanda lam Investment and Finance 
180 29-08-2024 11 75% 174 8 85 05- 10-2024 737 59 

Company Limited - Business Loan 

Total 785.21 
Less: Current Maturiti es classi fied 

29 19 
under Short Term Borrowin '(s 

Net Balance 756.02 

I The term loan fro m Yes Bank is fo r purchase of car which had an outstanding bala nce of Rs 4.08.575/- as on 31st March 2024 has been closed during the period which was 
secu red against hypothecation of the car 

2 The term loan from ICICI Bank is for purchase of vehicle having an ou tstandi ng balance of Rs 34. 15,260/- as on 31st March 2025 is secured agai nst hypo thecat ion of t he ~ r 

3 The term loan from ICICI Bank is for purchase of vehicle having an outstanding ba lance of Rs 13,46, 733 /- as on 31st March 2025 is secured against hypothecation of the car 

-4 The tenn loan from Cholamandalam fnvest ment is fo r business purpose having an outstandi ng balance of Rs 7,37,58,564/- as on 31st March 2015 is secured against property 
held at Panruti Road. U Keeranu r Village 

(Amount in t Lnkhs) 
Or uiils or S~t"urrd Lonu.s as on Jht M:,rcb ?024 

Terms of No orOls 
Closing 

Particular.1 Repayment (in Date of Loan 
Rate or 

Jnstalmencs 
Instalment Starting Balaaceuat 

months) 
Interest (p.a.) 

(in months) 
Amount Date Man:h3l, 

2014 
Yes Bank Car Loan 60 23- 11 -2020 13 75% 20 Months 013 15- 12-2020 4 09 
Less: Current Maturities classified 
under Short Tenn 8(lrrowini!s 

2 34 

Net Bal.once 1.75 

Details of Unsecured loans as on 31st ,\'larch 2025 

Terms or No orOls 
Closing 

Rate or )nsta1men1 Starting Balance as at 
Particula~ Repaymrnt (in Date of Loan Sanctioned 

Interest (p.a.) 
lnstalments 

Amount D•t• December 31. 
months) (in months) 

2024 

Llnitv Small Finance Bank 36 03- 10-2023 1800% 19 1 11 04- 11-2023 18 17 
Baiai Finance Limited 24 25-05-2023 1800¾ 3 I 54 02-07-2023 4 48 
SMFG In di a Credit Company Limited 19 04-03-2024 18 SO¾ 6 I 94 04-04-2024 11 04 
Kisetsu Saison Finance India 24 23 -09-2023 18 5011/ 0 7 I 08 03- 11 -2023 7 11 
Hero FinCorp Limited 36 03-06-2023 17 SO¾ 15 I 09 03 -07-2023 14 57 
Total 55,37 
Less Current Maturities classifi ed 

44 89 
under Short Term Borrowinus 

Net Balance 1· - M,r-TI0,1.t .,,,.- i·•'OR1s \ 
':>() 
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Details or Lnsecured loans as on 31st March 2024 

Terms of NoofO/• 
Oosiag 

Particulan Repayment (in Date of Loan Sanctioned 
Rate of 

Instalments 
lrutalmtnl Starting Balauceasat 

Interest (p.a.) Amount Dale December 31. 
months) (In .. oath!) 

2024 
Unity Small Finance Bank 36 03-10-2013 18 00% l I 111 04-11-2023 27 27 
Bajaj Finance Limited 24 25-05-202) 1800% 15 I 54 01-07-2023 20 5 I 
SMFG India Credit Company Li mited 19 04-03-2024 18 50% 18 I 94 04-04-2024 30 3 I 
Kisetsu Saison Finance India 24 23-09-2023 18 50% 19 I 08 Ol-1 1-2023 17 65 
Hero FinCorp Limited 36 03-06-1023 17 50% 27 I 09 03-07-2023 24 15 
Total 119.88 

Less Current Maturities classified 
64 52 

under Short Term Borrowings 

NetBalante SS-37 

NOTE-4: DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY (Amuunt ;n t Lakhs) 

Particulan A, at_Mud1 3 I. 2025 A! at March 31. 2024 

Deferred Tax Liability 

On Account of Deprecia tion 73 43 4145 

On Account of Gratuity (2 79) (I 77) 

On Account of Preliminary Expenses 100 87 70 30 

TOTAL 171.51 115.98 

NOTE-5: LONG-TERM PROVISIONS (Amount in t Lak/1s) 

Particulan As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 

Long Term Provision 

Provision for Gratuity 11 07 -
TOTAL 11.07 -
NOTE-6: SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS (Amount int Lnkh.t) 

Particulan As al \\farcb JI. 20.?S Aul (\'IJlrcbJ l , 2024 

Secured 

Current Maturilies of Long-term borrowings 29 19 2 34 

Bank Overdraft & Cash Credit"' 952 10 120 91 

Unsecured 

Current Maturilies of Long•term borrowings 44 89 75 23 

TOTAL 1,026.18 198.47 

~Details of Bank overdraft and Cash Credit facilities comprising ofirs nature. rate of interest. security. etc are given below 

Nature or Facility Name of Institution/Banks As at March 31, 2025 A1 at March 31, 2024 

Cash Credi, IC ICI BANK 952 40 12091 

Overdraft KOTAK MAHINDRA BANK -0 30 -
/CIC/ Ba11k • Casi, Cretlit 

The Cash Credit Facility from ICIC I Bank have been sanctioned for an amoun t of Rs 10 Crores. which have been arranged by securing the Curren t Assets held over time and a 
fixed deposi t held with IC ICI Bank Li mited. sanctioned at interest rate of 6 50% pa and Spread 3 15% pa as on March 3 1, 2015 , the interest factor will reset itself upon every 
J months The cash credit facility is renewed Augus1 30, 2024 and will be valid upto August 29, 2025 

Kotttk M<1/tim/rc, Bt111k - C11s/1 Credit 

The Overdraft Facility from Kotak Mahindra Bank have been sanctioned for an amount of Rs 5 Crores. which have been arranged by securing the fixed deposit held with Kotak 
Mahindra Bank Limited, sanctioned at interest rate of7 40% pa and Spread 1% pa as on March 31, 1025. the interesr factor will be based on lhe interest rare on the Fixed 
Deposit added by a I% spread The cash credit fac ility is availed on November 28. 2024 and will be valid upto November 15, 2025 

!'IOTE-7 , TRADE l'AY.\BLES 

Particulars As al Marth JI, 2025 

(A) Tmal Outstanding dues of Micro. Small and Medium Enterprises 4 79 

(B) Total Outstanding dues of Creditors Other than Micro Small and Medium Enterprises ~04 77 

TOTAL 409.56 

(Amuunt in r /.akhs) 

As at March 31, 2024 

0 so 

54 SJ 

55.63 
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Oun Of Sm11II En.rerulin~s.And ,\ llrro En11::mfu~ 
Parti~ulan As at December 31, 2024 As 11 l\lan:h'3J, 2024 

(a) Dues remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year 
-Principal 4 79 0 80 

-Interest on the above -

(b) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises Development Act. 2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the . 
appointed day during each accounting year; 

(c) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid 
but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small - . 
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006: 

(d) the amounl of fi.Jf1her interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date 
when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise. for the purpose ofdisallowance ofa . -
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Developmenl Act. 2006 

TOTAL. 4.79 0.80 

Trade Pavables 32.eine schedule As at March 31. 2025 (Amount in r Lt1kl1s) 

Particulan 
Ouutaudin~ for following perfodJ ,rrom due date ofpaymeut 

< I Year 1-2Years 2-3 Yean >3Yean Total 
(A) Total Outstanding dues of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 4 79 . . . 4 79 

(B) Total Outstanding dues of Creditors Other than Micro. Small and Medium Enterprises 404 77 . . 404 77 

(C) Disputed dues of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises . - . . -
(D) Disputed dues of Creditors Other than Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises . . -

TOTAL 409.56 - . . 409.56 

Trade Pavahles a.ee.illl!! .schedu.Ji: As aJ March 31. 2024 (Amount in r Lt1kl,s) 

Particulan 
Ou~tonding ror ronowlnl! pcdodl rrom d11e daJe or paym•nt 

<I Year 1-2 Yean 2-3\'eaa >lYean Total 
(A) Total Outstanding dues of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 0 80 - - 0 80 

(B) Total Outstanding dues of Creditors Other than Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 54 83 . 54 83 

(C) Disputed dues of Micro. Small and Medium Enterprises . - -
(D) Disputed dues of Creditors Other than Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises - - . 

TOTAL 55.63 - . 55.6.) 

Note Based on the information available with the Company, there are outstanding dues to Small and Micro enterprises as required to be disclosed under the Micro. Small and 
Medium Enterprises Developmenl Act, 2006 The information regarding Micro and Small enterprises has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the 
basis of information available with the Company 
Note: There are no unbilled trade payables as on Lhe reportin_g date 

NOTE-8 : OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES (Amount in ( Lllkl,s) 

Particulan As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 

Audil Fees Payable 6 00 5 00 

Salary Payable 48 27 17 48 

Other Payables 1000 -

Corporate Credit Card Payable 99 27 -
Advance from Customers so 00 170 52 

CSR Payable 12 94 -
lnterest accrued but not due I 29 

Statutory Dues Payable 

TDS Payable 279 67 143 07 

Professional iax payable 

GST Payable 228 10 59 08 

Labour Welfare Fund Payable -
Provident Fund Payable 0 75 I 24 

rroTAL 746.28 396.40 

NOTE-9: SHORT-TERM PROVIS ION S (Amo11nt in ( lakh.'i) 

Particulars Ao at March 31, 2025 As al Mllrch 31, 2024 

Provision for Income Tax 1,014 79 129 69 

Provision for Gratuity 0 03 

TOTAL t,014,82 229.69 

NOTE-I I: LONG-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES (Amount in i Lt1klu) 

Particulan As al March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 

St.'"CUnt y t)cpri,"Hll t.$ 4,c'~~ 1ll 1_994 48 

TOTAL 4,594.78 1,994.48 



~o~rE.-12 : OTHER /,'ON -CURRl.:NT ASSETS (t1muuut 111 t I...JtJ.du:) 

Particulan As at March 31, 2025 As al March 31, 2024 

EnLry into Service 2,153 00 1,89531 

Pre Operative Expenses - 19 50 

TOTAL 2,153.00 1,914-81 

NOTE-13, INVENTORIES (Amount in i lakhs) 

Particulars A• at Man:h 31, 2025 As at Man:h 31, 2024 

Inventories - Materials.Spares & Consumables 890 93 671 48 

TOTAL 890.93 671.48 

NOTE-14, TRADE RECEIVABLES (Amount in i Lakhs) 

Particulan: As at March 31, 2025 Al at Man:h 31, 2024 

Undisputed Trade Receivable Considered Good 2,087 39 659 91 

Undisputed Trade Receivable Considered Doubtfi.JI -
Disputed Trade Receivable Considered Good -

Disputed Trade Receivable Considered Doubtful -

less Bad debts provision - -
TOTAL 2,087.39 659-91 

Trade Receivables a2eine schedule As at March 31. 2025 (Amount in i lak/rs) 
Onurttt rtding:ro,· rouowh1g ptriod.J. rrnm 1,tue. dotc or p•ymtnl 

Particulan 6 Months- 1 
2-3Yean >3 Yean Total <6 Months 

Year 
1-2 Yean 

Undisputed Trade Receivable Considered Good 2,087 39 - - 2,087 39 

Undisputed Trade Receivable Considered Doubtful . - -
Disputed Trade Receivable Considered Good - - - - -
Disputed Trade Receivable Considered Doubtful - - - . -
Less: Bad debts provision . - - -

TOTAL 2,087.39 - - - 2,087,39 

Trade Receivables ageine schedule As at March 31, 2024 (Amount in i Lflkhs) 
0 nlsfn.n.din t Jo ... (ollowiD.2 nmod.l rrom d:uc du.Lr. or DA1i mml 

Particulan 6 Monih> • I 
<6 Months v •.. 1-2Yean 2-3Yean >3Ycars Total 

Undisputed Trade Receivable Considered Good 656 04 - 3 87 - . 659 9 1 

Undisputed Tn:idc Ri.:cciv:iblc Considered Doubtful -
Disputed Trade Receivable Considered Good - - - -
Disputed Trade Receivable Considered Doubtful - - - - . 
Less: Bad debts provision - . 

TOTAL 656,04 3.87 - . 659.91 

Note: There are no unbilled trnde receiva bles as on the reporting date. 

NOTE-IS : CASH AND CASH EQI/IVALENTS (Amount in ( l.11kl,:d 

Particulan As at March 31, 2025 As at Man:h 31, 2024 

Cash & Cash Equivalents 

i) Cash on Hand 0 50 56 55 

ii) Balance with Banks in Curren! Accoun1s 

(A) In Curren t Accounts 59 94 776 86 

(B) In Deposits 4.148 60 -
iii) Bank deposits with more than twelve months maturity 773 45 

TOTAL 4,982.50 833.42 

NOTE-16: SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES (Amount int / .,r,k/,sJ 

Particulan As al March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 

Unsecured, Considered good: 

Advances from Related Parties 328 ~2 31 \ 60 

Advance - Others 

Advances to Suppliers 2.192 95 735 ~9 

Advances to Employees 8 10 ~ 

TOTAL 2,529.57 1,0~7.09 

'iOTE-17: OTHER CURRENT ASSETS (Amount in i J..akhs) 

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at Morch 31, 2024 

Balance with Revenue Authorities 78 71 19 7-l 

Other Short Term Advances 88 02 0 66 

Accrued Interest on Fixed Deposits 29 19 

Prepaid Expenses"' ,) 1.206 26 

TOTAL 1,402.18 20.40 

• Nute includes eligible expenses incurred in ~~~nn . ~~~public offer of equity shares of the Company amounting to Rs 64 96 lakhs for the year ended 
M1m;lt 3 l, 2025 (March 2024 NlL), 1ct>ll'-l:'i '1Jb -~~ li _ • ~ij' , djuin:;,bh: against securities premium of the IPO proceeds r_· 
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NOTF.-18: REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS IA mm,nt In l Lakb.vl 

Particulars A• at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 

Sale of Services 

Domestic Operations 4,466 58 1,464 49 

International Operations 14,922 98 9,184 20 

TOTAL 19,389.56 10,648.69 

NOTE-19: OTHER INCOME (Amount int Lakl,s) 

Particulars A• at March 31, 2025 As ot March 31, 2024 

Interest Income 85 13 0 37 

Net Foreign Exchange Gain 63 40 14 05 

Other Non-operating Income (Refer Note below) 0 29 

TOTAL 148.82 14.42 

Details or Other Non Ooeratin.!!. Income (Amounl in t Lnkhs) 
Particulars As at December 31, 2024 As at Mattb 31, 2024 

Other Non-operatin~ Income: 
Scrap Sales 0 25 -
Gain on dfsr,o.sal of asset 0 04 -

'TOTAJ, 0.29 -
~on:-?o : OIRtCT OPf.:RATh~G EXP£.",S£S (A,mmnf in t l .a(<l,:r) 

Particulan: As al March 31, 2025 Al at MJu-cb 31, 2024 

Purchase of Spares and Consumables 

Purchase of Spare Parts and Rotables 049 904 55 

Purchase of Consumables 416 67 77 22 

Add: Opening Inventories 671 48 -
Less Closing Inventory (890 93) (671 48) 

Sub Total (A) 197.71 310.28 

Direct Expenses 

AircraR Lease Charges I, 125 90 309 57 

Crew Transport & Hotel Charges 86 30 36 17 

Aircraft Handling Charges 443 12 I 70 65 

Aircraft Maintenance 247 62 128 05 

Aircraft Fuel Expenses 649 39 143 60 

Aircraft Charter Charyes 10,621 83 7,529 45 

Crew Salary & Allowance 167 85 44 97 

Maintenance Program 

- MRO Fees 566 48 125 63 

-CAMO Fees - 9 36 

Professional Fee - 10 84 

Aircraft Insurance 49 94 12 49 

DGCA Fee 0 09 I SJ 

Other Aircraft Charges 2440 8 37 

Other Direct costs 308 69 88 80 

Sub Total (8) 14,291.61 8,619.47 

TOTAL(A+B) 14,489.31 8,929.75 

NOTE-21 : EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES (Amount in ? 1.nkhs) 

Particulars Al at March 31, 2025 As at Morch 31, 2024 

Salaries & Wages (Refer Note below) 375 24 8 I 21 

Employer's Contribution to Welfare Funds 4 07 2 20 

Employees Gratuity 4 07 

Staff Welfare 68 02 4 64 

TOTAL 451.40 88.05 

Note: SALARIES & WAGES (rlmmwt i11 ( Lukl,s) 

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 Al at March 31, 2024 

Salary 338 84 57 21 

Director's Remuneration 36 40 24 00 

TOTAL 375.24 81.21 

"~OTE-22: FINA:',CE COSTS (Amo1111t i11 f L"kl,.-.) 

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As al March 31, 2024 

interest Expenses - Borrowings 176 01 46 68 . 
Bank and Processing Charges 33 86 33 26 

TOTAL ~~no~ 209,87 79.95 
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'.'IOTE-23: DEPRECIATION & A:\1ORTISATION EXPE1'1S ES (Amount in { Laklrs) 

Particulan As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 

Depreciation on Assets- Tangible 31 57 26 01 

TOTAL 31.57 26.01 

NOTE-24: OTHER EXPENSES (Amount in { Lakh!;) 

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 A, at March 31, 2024 

Payment to Auditors 28 50 5 00 

Business Promotion Expenses 68 64 18 53 

Prinling & Stationery 5 35 3 70 

Rates & Taxes 40 01 11 16 

Telephone & Internet Charges 0 93 0 33 

Website Charges I 95 0 05 

Office Expenses 6 21 l 73 

Postage & Courier 0 74 0 54 

Software Subscription I 72 0 05 

Power & Fuel 2 76 4 11 

Office Rent 83 33 44 28 

Traveling & Conveyance 99 44 19 40 

Insurance 2 62 0 17 

Professional and Consultancy Charges 90 71 8 47 

Brokerage & Commission 2 58 24 89 

Loss on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment I 97 -
CSR Expenses 12 94 -
Repairs & Maintenance 6 02 3 32 

TOTAL 456.44 145.74 

PAYMENT TO AUDITORS {Amount in { Lakl,s} 

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at Man:h 31, 2024 

Slatutory Audit Fees 4 00 4 00 

Tax Audit Fees 2 00 I 00 

Other Services 22 50 -
TOTAL 28.50 5.00 

CSR EXPENSES 
Partit:ulars I 4! at.March 31,-2015 At at Man:b 31, 2024 

(i) Gross amoun1 requi red to be spent 12 94 -
(ii ) Amount apporved by the board to be spent 12 94 -
(iii) Amount of expenditure spent -
(iv) A1nount oforovision made 12 94 . 

TOTAL 12.94 . 

Note: For the fina ncial year 2024•25, the uns penl CSR obliga tion as on March 31, 2025 will be lransferred by company 10 a septt ra te account ("Unspent CSR 
Account .. ) within 6 months from the end of FY 2024-25. 

NOTE-25: CA LCULATIO N OF BA SIC & DILUT ED EPS (,Jmu,mt /11 t lDk/1.,) 

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at Man:h 31, 2024 

Net Prolit /( Loss) attributable 10 Equity Shareholders (A) 2.8-l0 61 I . I 13 10 

Weighted average number of equity shares outstand ing durinu, the period (8) (In Nos l I , 15,23,303 1.03,8 1,477 

Basic & Diluted EPS (lo Rs.) (A/BJ 24.65 10.72 

STATEM EJ'IT OF E_ARNINGS PERS.HARE A S RESTATED (Amount in r Lukl,s) 

Particulars As ,at March 31. 2025 As at March 31. Z024 
PAT as per P&L Account for Basic EPS 2,840 61 I, 113 10 
PAT as per P&L Account for Diluted EPS 2,840 61 1.113 10 
Basic EPS 2-l.65 10.72 

Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares at the end of the Year/ Period 115 23 103 SI 
Diluted EPS 2-l.65 10.72 

Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares at lhe end of the Year/ Period (Pre - Bonus l 1513 103 81 
Net Worth 15,037.67 6,599.12 

Current Assets 11 892 58 3,231 30 
Current Liabilities .1 1% 84 880 19 

EBITDA -l,l-ll.23 1,-199.57 

Earnings Per Shr1re (i'fotel *) 

Basic (Rs) 24 65 10 72 

Diluted (Rs) 24 65 10 72 

Net Asset Value Per Equity Share (Rs.) 117 97 205 57 

Return on Net Worth(%) 18 89% 16 87% 

Current Ratio , 3 72 3 6],. 
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Ratios have been calculated as below 

Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Restated Profit after Tax available 10 cflWIY Sh.;ireholdcrs 
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares at the end of the year/ period 

Return on Net Worth(%) Restated Profit after Tax available to equity Shareholders 
Restated Net Worth of Equity Shareholders 

Net Asset Value per equity share Restated Net Worth ofEquitv Shareholders 
Number of Equity Shares outstanding at the end of the year/ period 

NOTE-26: RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTION 

Name of the Party Nature of RP Relatiomhip 

I Mr Deepak Parasuraman Managing Director Chairman cum Managing Director 

2 Mr Kannan Ramakrishnan Director Director 

3 Mr Ambashankar Whole Time Director Whole Time Director 

4 Mis Shreshtha Business solutions LLP Promoter Group Company controlled and influenced by Designated Partner 

5 Mis Afcom Holdings Limited Group Company Company controlled and influenced by directors 

6 Mr Sanjay Srinivasan Key Managerial Personnel Chief Financial Officer 

7 Mis Chryseum Corporate Services (P) Ltd Group Company Company controlled and influenced by director 

8 Mrs Geetha (from 22nd Oct 2024 to 7th Jan 2025) Key Managerial Personnel Company Secretary 

9 Mr Narayanan Saptharishi (from 8th Jan 2025) Key Managerial Personnel Comoaov Secre"~ 

TRANSACTION WITH RELATED PARTIES DUR1NG rm:_ YEAR (Amount in ( lakhs) 

FY2024-25 FY 2023-2024 

Amouot 
Amount Name of the Related Party Nature ofTrasaction Trasactions (Re<eivable)/ Truactions 

Durioethe Payableuat Dorinclhe 
(Re<eivable)/ 
Payable mat 

Year March 31, Year 
Morch 31, 2024 

2025 

Unsecured Loan taken 2,715 98 -
Unsecured Loan Repaid . 2,666 29 
Advance towards services 328 52 (328 52J . . 
Sales .. Chartered Fees . -
Profession Fee 3 68 

Shreshrha Business Solurions LLP 
Reimbursement made against Expenditure I 42 I 58 

0 06 . 

Recruitment Fees 0 21 -
Receipts towards issue or shares 955.93 
A) att ribu table to eaid uo share caoita l 17 81 
B) attributable to securities premium . 938 12 -
Unsecured Loan 1aken 561 JO 75 84 . . 
Unsecured Loan Repaid 561 30 76 40 
Receipts towards issue or shares . . 50.00 -

Amba Shankar A) auributable to paid up share capi tal - I 43 . 
~ ) attributable to securities ,eremium . 48 57 . 

Reimbursemen t made ayainst Expenditure 61 88 (6 61) 69 62 (0 34) 

Remuneration Paid 23 90 20 06 24 00 Q 44 

l!nsecured Loan raken 293 37 670 18 . 
l:nsecured Loan Repaid 293 37 670 18 

Kannan Ramakrishnan 
Reimbursement made against E.xpenditure I 76 . 3 32 2 32 

ReceiplS towards issue of shares 230.00 . 
A) atmbutab le to paid up share . - 6 59 
Bl attnbutable to secunt ies premium . 223 41 
Unsecured Loan take_n 6 26 . -
Unsecured Loan Repaid 6 ~6 2180 
Reimbursement made a!!ainst Exoenditure 

- ---0- 17 . 
Deepnk Par:tsurnman Receipts towards issue or shares 12 50 6 45 200,00 -

Al attributable to oaid up share capital . - 5 73 -
B) attributable to securities premium - - 194 27 . 
Remuneration Paid . . . 

Sanjay Srinivasan Remuneration Paid 11 34 I 86 . 
Reimbursement made aua1nst Expenditure 12 06 38 99 (l 37) 

A.fcom Holdings Limited 
Unsecured Loan taken 901 85 (311 60) 
L nsecured Loan Reoaid :, 11 60 "81 ➔➔ 
L'nsecured Loan ~iven . - 871 95 

Chryseum Corporate Services Pvl Limited Reea~ment of loan given 966 20 
Advances towards services . 

Geetlrn Remuneration Paid 1 86 -
N:1ravanan Savtharishi Remuneration Paid 1 20 0 40 -



NOTE-27: PROVISION FOR GRATUITY 

Gratuity -The Presenl value of obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method This method considers each period of service as 

giving rise to an additional unit of benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately lo build up the final obligation 

Interest cost It is the increase in the Plan liability over the accounting period resulting from the operation of the actuarial assumption of the interest rate 

Current Service Cost is the discounted present value of the benefits from the Plan's benefit formula attributable to the services rendered by employees during the accounting 
period 

Actuarial Gain or Loss occurs when the experience of the Plan differs from that anticipated from the actuarial assumptions It could also occur due to changes made in the 
actuarial assumptions 

(i) RECONCILIATION OF OPENING AND CLOSING BALANCE OF GRATUITY OBLIGATIONS: 

Partimlars 
Nel Liability as at the Beginning of the Period (Note I"') 
Net Exoenses in P/L Ne 
Benefits Paid 
Net Liabilitv as at the End of the Period 
Pre9ent Value or Gratuitv Oblit?:ation (Closinli) 

(ii) EXPENSES RECOGNISED IN STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS DURING THE YEAR: 

Particulan 
Interest Cost 

Current Service Cost 
Past Service Cost 

Exoected Return on Plan Assets 
Curtailment Cost (Credit) 

Settlement Cost (Credit) 
Net Actuarial (Raio}/ loss 
Net Expenses to be reco2_nized in P&L 
TOTAL 

(iii) CHANGES IN BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS: 

~ i..: Detined benefit Obli~ation (Nole t •) 
Current Service Cost 

Interest Cost for the Year 
Actuarial losses (eains) 

Benefits Paid 

Closin1.1 Defined Benefit Obligation 
TOTAL 

(iv) ACTUARIAL ,i.SSUMPTIONS: 

Rate of Discounting 

Salarv Escalation 

Attrition Rate 

Monality rate during employment lndian 

•Note I 

Particulars 

Particulars 

As a.tMarchll . 2025 
7 03 

4 07 

11 10 
11.10 

A• at Marth 31. 2025 
0 51 
6 08 

(2 52) 

4 07 

4.07 

As at March 31. 2025 
7 03 

6 08 
0 51 

12 52) 

II 10 
II.IO 

As at March 31, 2025 
708% 
5 U0% 

10 00% 

Indian Assured lives 
Mortality (2012-14) Ulcimate 

The Graluity provision until rhe year ended 31st March 2024 is adjusted in Reserves and su rplus of Lhc year ending 31st March 2025 

NOTE-28 : CONTINGENT LIABILITY 

Particular.i 
Claims al.?,ainst the Company not Acknowledged as Debt~ 

TDS demand 
Goods and Services Ta." 

Income Tax Demand 
Other monev for which the Co01pa_nv i.'- Cori.tir.u!.e.ntlv liable 
TOTAL 

Notes* 

TDS demand 

As at March 31 , 2025 

32 40 
43U 17 

462.57 

(Amount in ( lflkhs) 

A! at March 31! 2024 

(Amount in t lt1khs) 

As at March 31, 2024 

(Amount in r lt1k/1s) 

As a1 March 31, 2024 

(Amount in l Lakhs) 

As at March 31. 2024 

(Ammmt in ( l .t1kh'I) 

As at Man:h 31, 2024 

The Company has TDS demand as per TRA.CES due to interest and late fees for the tolal demand amount of Rs 32,--W,350/- However the company has plans to file rectification 
against the outstanding TDS ,vith the appropriate authorities and the company is confident of obtaining relief from the demand 

Goods and Services Tflx 

The Company has demand in GST fo1 Rs ➔,30, 16,)78/- for FY 21-22 with respect to claim of ITC fo1 an inadvertent error of reporting zero value in the GST Annual return 
The SJme has been taken up by the company with the GST depanment and submitted the relevam p1oofsubstantiating it Since it was an inadvertent error, in all likelihood lhe 
L)rder may be reversed by the depanment 



NOTE-29: RATIO ANALYSIS (Amount in ( Lakhs) 

Particulars 
As at March 31, 2025 A> at M11rch 31 ,1024 

Numerator Denominator Ratio Numerator Denominator Ratio 

Current RaLio (in times) 
11,892.58 3,196.84 3,72 3,232 30 880 19 3.67 

Current Assets/ Current liabilities 

Debt-Equity Ratio (in times) 
1,792 66 15,037 67 0.12 255 59 6,599 12 0.04 

Total Outside Liabilities/ Total Shareholder's Equity 

Debt Service Coverage Ratio (in times) 
4,141 23 205 20 20.18 1,499 57 49 02 30.59 

EBITDA /(Interest+ Principal) 

Return on Equity Ratio (in times) 

(Net Profit After Taxes - Preference Dividend if any) 2,840 61 10,81839 0.26 I, I IJ 10 3,869 I 8 0.29 
/Average Shareholders fund 

Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio 

Credit Sales/ Average Trade Receivables 
19,389 56 l,373 65 14.12 10,648 69 628 81 16.93 

Inventory Turnover Ratio (in times) 
NA NA NA NA NA NA 

COGS or sales/ Average Inventory 

Trade payable Turnover Ratio (in times) 
14,708 76 232 59 63.24 9,60 I 24 36 84 260.62 

Credit purchases/ Average Trade Payables 

Net Capital Turnover Ratio (in times) 

Cost of Goods Sold (or) Sales/ Average working 14,489 3 I 5,523 92 2.62 8,929 75 1,390 74 6.42 
capital 

Net Profit Ratio (in %) 
2,840 6 I 19,389 56 0.15 1,113 10 10,648 69 0.10 

Nel Profit/ Total Sales 

Return on Capital Employed (in %) 
4. 109 65 16,830 33 0.24 1,473 55 6,854 70 0.21 

(EBIT / Capital Employed)* I 00 

Return On investment (in %) 

(Income generated from investment funds/ Total NA NA NA NA NA NA 
Investment) 

Particulars 
As at Mon:h, 2025 

Vnriuntr Rtuon ror Va.rinncr 

lncre.o.se in Trade Receivables. 
(' urrunl Ratio (in rimes) 

I 10', 
lnc:rra.sc: in o ther current 

r•urr-eul Assets I C'u rrent liabi lit ies litt11ihh.•• and shon term 

r1rovisJons. 

Improvement in the Revenue 

Dob,-E<J ul1y Ra1io (i n times) 
and Profi t after tax of 1he 

1"oull Outside Liabilities/ Total Shareholder's Equ ity 
207 80'/, company which contributed in 

increase in Shareholders' 

equity 

Ocbl Service Coverage Ra ti o (in times) 
.. 3◄ OJO~ 

Due to increase in long-1enn 
EBITOA /( In terest+ Principal) bo rrowings 

Rc-tum on Equity Ra1io (i n ti mes) 
Increase in 1he add itional issue 

(1'1:r Profi t After Taxes - Preference Di vidend if any ) -8 7J~u 
of Equ ity Shares 

/Avenge Shareholders fund 

--
Trnd,i; Receivables Turnover Ra tio 

.. to 6~,~ 
Increase in sales thereby 

Cn:.dft Sales I Average Trade Receivab les increasing trade receiv:i bles 

Inventory Turnover Ratio (in times) 
'IA NA 

COG~ or ~:iles I .\vera,;;e lnventor,1 

Trade payable Turnover Ratio (in limes) 
-75 1-lo/, 

Increase in purchases leading 
Credit purchases/ Average Trade Payables to increase in Trade Payables 

The dip is observed due to 
'Nel Capital Turnover Ratio (in times) increased Cosl of Sales in the 
Cost of Goods Sold (or) Sales/ Average v,.,orking capital 

-59 1;:;- 11 0 
vear in line with the 

inp1 ovement in the Revenue 

P.\T has increased in line with 

:\el Protit Ratio (in °a) 
. the increased topline 

Net Profit/ Total Sales 
-w u:an, comparing the p1-evious years 

/4 
., ..,,,---r. ~ , with effective management of :~~ \ a

'-' ),1 <.,... ~~~'\, direct and indirect costs 

ff.., ? HWiti Improvement in the Revenue I~ ~NAI ~I Relurn on Capital Employed (in %) I ;r(c 13 59% and Profit before tax of lhe 
(EBIT / Capital Employed)* 100 

~ 
company 

y~ \?z 6' 
Rctu ru On investment (in %) ~ -fJ \ ~ dtf! * pnc:om-i:: generated from investment funds/ Total A NA 
I n•rnmeql) , 

-



ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES WITH RESPECT TO AMENDMENTS TO SCHEDULE Ill AS RESTATED 
(i) The Company have no immovable property whose title deeds are not held in the name of the company 
(ii) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the reporting years 
(iii) Loans and Advances granted to Promoters, Directors, KMP and Related Parties: 

There are no Loans and Advances in the nature of loans that are granted to promoters, directors, KMP's and the related parties either severally or jointly with any other 
person, that are repayable on demand 

(iv) The Company does not have any Capital Work in progress in any of the financial years 
(v) The Company has Intangible Assets under development comprising of part payment made towards acquiring of Trademark, as at the end of balance sheet date 31st March 
2025 

Ageing Schedule oFlntangible Assets under development as on 31st March 2025 
(Amount in r Lt1kh.'i) 

Particufars Less than l year l - 2 vears 2 - 3 years Mo.re .than 3 v_ea.rs Total 
Proiects in o rna.re.ss... -

Trademark 0 70 0 70 

Proiects temoora.rilv susoeoded 

Tht are no intangible assets under development for 1'1c balance sheet dated 31st March 2024 

(vj} The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property under the 

Baii:im-f Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder 

{vii) The Company has made borrowing from the banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets, and the statements of current assets as required to be 

filed by the Company with any the banks or financial institutions are done periodically and are in accordance with the books of accounts 

(ViiiJ The Company is not declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender 

fix) The Company has not entered into any transactions with companies struck off 

('("l The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period 

(:d) The Company has no subsidiaries with one layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 

( '-Ii) No Scheme of Arrangements has been approved by the Competent Authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013 

('-iii) Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium: 

A The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to any other person(s) or 
i:ntlt)Un}, including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall 

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries 

B The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), incl uding fo reign en tities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in wri ting l.lr 

l11hel'\ l!cJ that the Company shall : 

(i) di rectly or indirect ly lend or in vest in other persons o r ent ities ident ified in any manner whatsoever by or on behal f of the Fundi ng Party (Ultimate Beneficiari es) or 

(ii ) provide any guarantee, security or the li ke on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries 

f~iVJ The Company has not en tered into any such transaction which is no t recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or di sclosed as income du ring the period 
1n the tax assessments under the Income Tax Ace, 196 1 (such as. search o r survey o r any o ther relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961) 

(l<\' J The Company has not traded o r in vested in Crypto currency or Virt ual Currency during the year 

1x,•I\ Value or import on CIF Basis 

I Particulars 

Purchase of Spares & Consumables 

Purchase of Capital l?Oods 

TOTAL 

(xv ii) EARNINGS IN FOREIGN CURRENCY 

Particulars 

Export of services 

TOTAL 

(niii) EXPENDIT URE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY 
Particulars 

Subscription 
Purchase of Spares & Consumables 

Emolovee benefit exoenses 
Aircratl Charter Cham.es 
Data Processing Charges 

Lease Rental 

AMC Char!!es 

TOTAL 

j ._; l.tJ Disclosure on applicability of Segment Reporting 

(Amount in r l nk/,s) 

As at March 31, 2023 As at Mattb 31, 2024 

159 16 400 42 

159.16 400.42 

(Amount i11 t lt1k/,s) 

A, at March 31. 2025 A, at Matth 31, 2024 

14,922 98 9, 18420 

14,922.98 9,184.20 

(Amount in r l.nkhs) 
4s at March 31~ 2025 AuLMar<h 31. 2024 

15 71 IU 11 

I 59 16 
50 86 ,_ ___ _ 

400 42 

79 16 

11.463 19 7,523 13 
42 98 

I, 115 90 82792 

314 t6 180 74 

13,128.99 I 9,164.57 

:\ ~ the company ' s operations are not divided into dit1'e1•e11L business segments or various geographical locations, so the disclosure requirement as per AS 17 are nor applicable 
anJJ no segment information is provided 

(" ) Figures for the previous year have been 1e-cl<1ss1tied 're-<111<111ged '1e-grouped ,.,.herc,e1 necessa~ lo conform to current yeaz cl<1ssificanon <1s per the requirement of 
rtcvi~LI Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013 

,'."i:~CI I There are no cham1;es in Accountin!! Estimates and Accounting Policies made bv the Company for the period ended 3 I st March 2025 "~ ~ 
(,, .,1i) The Company has not declared dividend during the P;~:~ ,.~~ sa \ 
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NOTE-JO: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT ANO INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

As at 31st March 2025 (Amount in r L"k/rs) 
Gross Block Accumulated Depreciation Net Block 

Particulars April 01, Additions for 
Deletions for 

March 31, April 01, Depreciation Depreciation March 31, March 31, March 31, 
2024 the year 

the year/ 
2025 2024 for the Year 

Adjustments 
on deletion 2025 2025 2024 

Adjustments 

Property, Plant and Equipment -
Aircraft Components & Equipment 525.98 525 98 24.51 24 98 - - 49 49 476 48 501 47 

Office Equipment 14.44 344 0 42 1746 2 02 2 99 - - 4 97 12 49 12 42 

Computer 1.17 0 92 - 2 09 0.21 0.56 - - 0.77 1.32 0 96 

Furniture and Fittings - 1.47 - 1 47 - 0 07 - - 0 07 1 40 -
Motor Vehicle - Motor car 9.00 53 .31 9.00 53.31 1.88 2.97 1.65 4.03 2.47 50.85 7. 12 

Total 550.59 59.15 9.42 600.31 28.62 31.57 1.65 4.03 57.78 542.53 521.96 

As at 31st March 2024 (Amount in r L"k/rs) 
Gross Block Accumulated Depreciation Net Block 

Particulars April 01, Additions for Deletions for March 31, April 01, Depreciation 
Adjustments 

Depreciation March 31, March 31, March 31, 
2023 the year the year 2024 2023 for the Year on deletion 2024 2024 2023 

Property, Plant and Equipment 

Aircraft Components & Equipment - 525.98 - 525 98 - 24 51 - 24 51 501 47 -
Office Equipment 1. 14 13.30 - 14.44 0,54 1 51 - 0 03 2 02 12 41 0 60 

Computer - 1.17 - 1 17 - 0 21 - - 0 21 0 96 -
Motor Vehicle - Motor car 9.00 - - 9 00 2,07 0,57 0.76 1.88 7. 12 6.93 

Total 10.14 540.45 - 550.59 2.61 26.80 - 0.79 28.62 521.96 7.53 

Notes:-

I) Adjustments shown in the accumulated depreciation comprises of depreciation of motor vehicle to the extent of Rs 1 65 Lakhs which was earlier omitted to be reported due to error. The same is reported in the Statement of Profit 

and Loss as a prior period item. 
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